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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of

Kaynes Technology India Private Limited
Mysore

Repori on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of WM/s. Kaynes
Technology india Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 313t 2020, the statement of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and the explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements read with the notes thereon give the information
required by the Companies Act 2013 {"the Act”) in the manner so reguired and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2020, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SA) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical reguirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexures o Board's Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If based on the work we have
performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to report
that fact. We have read and considered Board of Directors’ report and annexures to the Board's
report and have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the standalone financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide & basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
controi,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has an adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

kvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the said Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2020
taken on record by the Boeard of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control with reference to
standalone financials statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such control, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B", and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

Since Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Company being a private limited
company, the reporting required as per Section 197(16) is not applicable; and
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h) With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor’s report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the details of pending litigations in note 27 to the
standalone financial statements, the impact if any on the final settlement of these

litigations is not ascertainable at this stage;

ii. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contract
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Place: Bangalore
Date: 17)12)202e

# 424, 4th 'C° Main, 8th Cross, OMBR Layout, Banaswadi, Bangalore - 660 043,
Tel : +81+804+42444999, Email . bangalore@varmaandvanma.com

-/

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045328

CHERIAN K. BABY
Partner

M.No.16043
UDIN: 2101604 3 AAAAA 54934

Page 5 of 12




Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regutlatory Requirements” of our Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the standalone
financial statements of M/s Kaynes Technology India Private Limited for the year ended 31¢
March, 2020

(i} In respect of the Company's fixed assets (comprising of property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets)

(a)

(k)

(ii)

(i)

On the basis of our examination of the records, in our opinion, the Company is
maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situatior: of fixed assets;

We are informed that most of the fixed assets of the company have been physically
verified by the management during the earlier financial years based on a fixed asset
verification programme laid down by the management. However the company has not
carried out physical verification of fixed assets during this year. According to our opinion
the coverage needs to be improved having regard to the size of the company and the
nature of the assets.

The title deeds of immovable properties owned by the Company are presently lodged
with the bankers as security for loans availed and are explained to be held in the name
of the Company. In respect of immovable properties of that have been taken on lease
and disclosed as fixed assets in the standalone financial statements, the lease
agreements are in the name of the Company.

We are informed that the inventory of raw materials, finished goods and stores and
spares (excluding inventory with third parties at year end) have been physically verified
by the management at reasonable intervals the frequency of which in our opinion is
reasonable. As explained to us, no discrepancies were noticed on such verification. No
physical verification could be conducted as at the year end.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, the company has granted loan to parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Act. We are of the opinion that the terms
and conditions of loans granted by the company to these parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not prejudicial to the
interests of the company.
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{vii)

Schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated but
varied during the year. There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding at the
balance sheet date. Current accounts of the whole-time directors are not considered as
ioans for this purpose

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us in respect of loans and investments, provisions of section
185 and 186 of “the act” have been complied with to the extent applicable.

The Company has not accepted deposits in accordance with directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under are not applicable to
the Company. Hence the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the
company.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company in respect of its
products pursuant to Rules made by the Central Government of India, for the
maintenance of cost records as prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Act and are of
the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per our verification of

the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax,
Goods and Service Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. Delays were noticed in payment of statutory dues in a few cases.

As at the end of the year, there are no arrears of undisputed statutory dues of a material
hature outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date on which they
became payable although small amounts were outstanding due to omission as under;

Name of the statute Nature of the Dues Period to Amount in
which Rupees
amount
relates

Employee Provident Funds | Contribution to Provident Fund 2019-2020 1,211,482
and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952

Employees State Contribution to ESI 2019-2020 72,490
Insurance, 1948
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us there are no unpaid disputed
dues of Income tax, Value Added Tax, Service tax, GST, duties of customs, duties of
axcise or Sales Tax as on 31 March, 2020 except for the following:

Name of the statute/ | Amount in Amount paid Period to Forum where
Nature of dues Rupees under which the dispute is
protest/ amount pending
adjusted by relates
the
Department
Income Tax Act, 1961 4,94 11,430 - AY. 2018-18 CPC
[F.Y. 2017-18]
Income Tax Act, 1961 75,864,783 15,13,957 | AY 2017-18 CPC
[F.Y. 2016-17]
income Tax Act, 1961 17,36,670 -|  AY 2016-17 CPC
[F.Y.2015-16]
Income Tax Act, 1961 58,720 -|  AY 2019-20 CPC
[F.Y.2018-19
Central Sale Tax, 1956/| 10,41,19,72 - AY 2014-15 Joint
Karnataka Value Added 5 Commissioner
Tax, 2003 Appeals,
Commercial
Taxes
Depariment
Central Sales Tax, 1956/ 5,07,38,662 -1 AY-2015-16 Joint
Karnataka Value Added Commissioner
Tax,2003 of Commercial
Taxes,
VAT (Audit-2)

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
verification of the records of the company, the company has not defaulted in repayment
of material dues to the bank or financial institutions. There were no overdues as at 31%
March, 2020. Company has not avaited any loan from the Government. There is no
default in repayment of debentures during the year.

{ix) As a private company the question on public offer of shares is not applicable to the
Company. According to the information and explanation given to us and as per the
verification of the records of the Company, the term loans obtained during the year has
been applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
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{x) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, no frauds by the Company or on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xiy The Company is a private company, hence the provisions of section 197 of the
Companies act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

{(xii)  in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable,

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, all the fransactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 188 of the Act where applicable since according to the
management these transactions have been undertaken on arm's length basis in the
ordinary course of business and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. As
explained, provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the Company.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year and
hence reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the company.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45|A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934,

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 004532S

o

CHERIAN K. BABY
Parther
M.No.16043

Place: Bangalore
Date: 17 a]2000
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”}

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Kaynes
Technology India Private Limited (“the Company”) as on 31 March 2020 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
conirols based on the internal controf with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilites include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, both issued by ICAIl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference To Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company: and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the standalone financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference To Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting as detailed in note no. 30 to the financial statements and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March
2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
Including basis of allocating expenses to various projects considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045325

CHERIAN K., BABY
Partner
M.No.16043

Place: Bangalore
Date : 1+ oo

UDIN: Z 3016 04 28 ARANA T4 299

Page 12 of 12




KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT

. 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Particulars Note @) @)
I, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} Shareholders’ Funds
(a) Share Capital 2 6,79,99,920 6,79,99,920
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 98,09,74,886 86,75,27,922
1,04,89,74,806 93,55,27,842
{2) Non-Current Liabilities
{(a) Long term Borrowings 4 9,79,56,114 29,54,56,396
(b) Deferred tax Labilities (Net) 5 8,40,10,917 7,96,08,902
(d} Long term provisions 6 2,55,23,564 2,24,93 464
20,74,90,595 39,76,18,762
(3) Current Liabilities
{a) Short term Borrawings 7 1,10,54,00,017 1,18,73,5%,424
{b}Trade payables 8

- Total outstanding dues of micre and small Enterprises

- Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than

micro and small enterprise
{c) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short. term provisions

Total

il. ASSETS
{1} Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i} Tangible Assets
(i1} (ntangible Assets
(iii) Capital Work in Progress
(b) Non Current investments
(¢) Long Term Loans and Advances

(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b} Trade Receivables
(¢) Cash & Bank Balances
(d) Short term loans and advances
(@) Other current assets

Total
Significant Accounting Polices
Other Notes

11

12
13

14
15
16
17
18

27-44

4,01,65,198

86,96,21,678

66,608,376

87,88,63,922

30,95,91,690 17,12,76,101
1,89,21,763 1,84,76,175
2,33,97,00,346 2,26,26,39,998
3,59,61,65,747 3,59,57,86,602
49,78,33,734 44,38,70,861
4,47,00,888 4,62,47,740
9,39,81,040 2,19,56,865
3,12,98,162 3,57,67,962
7,51,94,242 5,54,23,948
74,30,08,067 60,32,67,376

1,43,64,37,157
92,89,76,347
11,53,54,098

1,20,05,03,612
1,20,55,49,910
31,83,78,390

35,70,15,074 25,90,36,727

1,53,75,005 90,50,587
2,8%,31,57,680 2,99,25,19,226
3,59,61,65,747 3,59,57,86,602

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Kaynes Technology Indfa Private Limited
CIN: U29128KA2008PTC045825

- = fan bl

" “Ramesh Kunhikannan
Managing Director
[DIN: 02063167]

iram P Sampath

[DIN: 08064368)

St

bser
N Srividhya“\Cb 1 M

Company Secretary

Place: Mysare
Date: 2 122000

Place: Mysore
Date: 7]

Whole Time Director

t2 1020

As per our report of the even date attached

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0045325

Cherian K Baby

Partner
M No: 016043

Place: Bangalore

Date: (7 [i2fz020
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

STANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

y 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Particulars Note () )
INCOME
Revenue from operations 19 3,60,34,07,889 3,52,84,30,210
Other Income 20 2,07,73,271 2,40,29,575
Total - 3,62,41,81,160 3,55,24,59,785
EXPENDITURE
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 21 2,55,73,42,962 2,37,81,09,711
Changes in inventories of finished goods 22 {16,86,26,482) (4,39,23,064)
work-in-progress and traded goods
Employee Benefits expense 23 39,44,47,096 392,15,11,804
Finance costs 24 22,53,55,830 18,71,66,217
Rescarch and Development Expenditure 25 1,62,45,590 2,78,33,135
Depreciation and Amortisation 11 6,33,12,007 5,04,09,655
Other Expenses 26 40,23,29,226 43,06,60,417
Total 3,49,04,06,230 3,42,17,67,876

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax
Exceptional ltems

Profit before extraordinary items and tax

Extraordinary items

13,37,74,930

13,37,74,930

13,06,91,909

13,06,91,909

Profit / {Loss) Before Tax 13,37,74,930 13,06,91,%909
Tax expenses
Current tax 2,46,00,000 3,00,00,00C
Short/ (excess) provision of income tax for earlier years {4,72,934) (7,25,771)
Add: MAT Credit entitlement (81,41,115) -
Deferred Tax charge/ (Gain) 43,42,015 88,99,005
Profit / {Loss) after tax 11,34,46,964 9,25,18,675
Earnings Per Equity Share : 37
-Basic Earnings Per Equity Share 16.68 13.61
-biluted Earnings Per Equity Share 16.68 13.61

Significant Accounting Polices 1
Other Notes 27-44

For and on behalf of the Board of Rirectors of
Kaynes Technology india Private Limited

CIN: U29128KA2008PTCO15825
KA G Mwwfrd{«

As per our report of the even date attached

m P Sampath
Whole Time Director
[DIN: 080643681

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0045325

Cherian K Baby
Partner
M No: 016043

M"’""Ra-mgs Kunhikannan Jair
Managing Director
[DIN: 02063167]

™
Dt g
N Srividhya

Company Secretary

Place: Mysore
Date: :7/;2.’~1oz 0

Place: Mysore
Date: 7)1z ]2020

Place: Bangalore
Date: 17/12f2 000
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF STANDALONE CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Particulars

[A.] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation and, exceptional items

Adjustments for ;

Depreciation and Amortisation

Interest income

Finance costs

Interest on Income tax

Profit on sale of Mutual funds

(Profit)/ Loss on sale of fixed assets

Bad debts written off

Unrealised Foreign Exchange {Gain)/loss

Operating Profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for :

(Increase)/ decrease in Inventories

(thcrease)/ decrease in Trade Receivables

(Increase)/ decrease in Loans and Advances and other current
assets

incicase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables

hcrease/ (aecrease) in Other Liabilities and Provisions

Cash generated from operations

Direct taxes paid
Net Cash from/ (used in) operating activities (A)

[B.] CASH FL.LOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets / CWIP

Interest Received

Sale Procecds/ (Investment} in Mutual Funds {net)
Investments in Equity shares of subsidiary company
Sale of Fixea Assets

Net Cash Flow from/ {(used in) Investing Activities (B)

[C.} CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Unsecured Loans {repayment)/ receipt
Secured Loans (repayment}/ receipt
lnterest paid (repayment)/ receipt

Met Cash Flow from/ (used in) Financing Activities { C)

Net increase/ ( decrease ) in Cash and Cash equivalents [A+B+(]

Cash and cash equivalents as at April 1, 2019
Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2020
Cash and Bank Balances ' '

6,33,12,007

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
(%) %)
13,37,74,930 13,06,91,909

5,04,09,655

(75,25,859) (62,35,569)
22,53,55,830 18,71,66,217
55,80,650 49,66,568

(10,16,798) -

(50,000) 4,66,050

49,40,259 2,25,37,094
1,14,60,252 (1,55,04,799)
30,20,56,341 24,38,05,215

. 43,58,31,271 37,44,97,124

{23,59,33,545)
28,45,91,649
(10,73,50,246)

(35,29,88,498)
9,55,89,596
(2,42,50,755)

(41,64,017) (6,78,04,139)
(2,13,16,498)  (57,97,149)
(8,41,72,657) (35,52,50,945)

_____ 35,16,58,614  1,92,46,180

(1,72,67,195)

(6,45,70,810)

33,43,91,419

(4,53,24,630)

(18,85,34,564)

(10,92,44,248)

75,25,859 62,35,569
54,86,598 (1,80,000)
-- (14,99,900)
50,000 3,80,000
(17,54,72,107) (10,43,08,579)
(22,03,22,690) 1,63,51,438
8,37,34,914 55,81,41,699
(22,53,55,830) (18,71,66,217)
(36,19,43,605) 38,73,26,919
(20,30,24,292) 23,76,93,710
31,83,78,390 8,06,84,680
11,53,54,098 31,83,78,390
(20,30,24,292) 23,76,93,710
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* Cash and Bank Balances includes ¥.6,10,07,795 /- [PY: ®.6,26,14,505 /-] of ecarmarked bank deposits, which
however is encashable on request without any additional cost and 2.3,25,78,314 /- (PY : £.5,89,55,873 /-) held as

margin money by the bank for issue of guarantees and letter of credit on behalf of the company [Refer Note 16]

[Notes]
[1] The above Cash Flow Statement has been compiled from and is based on the Batance Sheet as at March 31,
2020 and the related Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended on that date.

[2] The above Cash Flow Statement has heen prepared on indirect method in accordance with the prescription in
Accounting Standard (AS) 3 on cash flow statements notified in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006,

[3] Figures in the brackets indicates cash outflow during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of As per our report of the even date attached
Kaynes Technology India Private Limited
CIN: U29128KA2008PTC045825

\Ranjgfh unhikannan For VARMA & VARMA
Managing Director Whole Time Director Chartered Accountants
[DIN: 02063167] IDIN: 08064368] Firm Registration No: 0045325
q fk«—’rJ 1‘41 o W < v
N Srividhya Cherian K Baby
Company Secretary Partner

M No: 016043
Flace: Mysore Place: Myscre Place: Bangalore
Date: 17)12 J2020 Date: | 7)12)2 0.0 Date:j7/s2)2020
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

iif)

iv)

Corporate Information:

Kaynes Technology India Private Limited (“the Company”) is a company domicited in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in providing
Electronic Design and Manufacturing Service "EDMS” solutions to suit individual customer requirements.

The Company is headquartered at Mysore and has its 10 manufacturing facilities and 2 Service Centres at
8 locations in India.

Significant Accounting Palicies

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principtes (IGAAP) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. IGAAP comprises mandatory
accounting standards Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, and other
applicable provisions of the Act. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a
newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of income and expenses during the period.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Difference between the actuals/revised estimate and earlier
estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/materialise.

Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with AS 3 (Cash flow statements) specified under
the Companies Act, 2013 using the indirect method to determine cash flows from operating activities,

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of products is recognised on dispatch of goods to customers or when ready far
delivery based on order terms, and excludes GST. Sales returns are recognised in the year in which the
goods are returned,

Revenue from services is recognised on accrual basis on completion of the service.

Rental income is recognised as per the terms of the agreement.

Interest income is recognized on a time propartion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “Other Income” in the Profit and
Loss Statement.

Lxport incentives are recognized in the statement of prefit and toss when the right to receive credit as
per the terms of the scherme is ostablished i "espec 'of Lexports made and when there is no significant
uncertainly regarding the ultimato collectmn -of the role .an‘c export proceeds.
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

Fixed assets, Depreciation and Amortisation

a) Tangible assets: Property, Plant & Equipment [PPE]

Tangible Assets [Property, Plant & Equipment] are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation,
impairment in value if any. Cost includes purchase price (inctusive of import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes}, other costs directly attributable for bringing the assets to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

When parts of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components). The cost of replacement of spares/ major inspection relating to
Property, Plant & Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future ecoromic benefits
associated with these will flow to the company and cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The grant if any received for any identified items of Property, Plant & Equipment is reduced from its
cost.

h) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired are separately measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if
any.

Self Developed intangible Assets are recognised at cost where the research phase is completed
successfully and the aggregate value to be recovered through its use over five years after completing
deveploment phase also and is ready to put to use. The same is carried as capital work in progress untill
the assets is ready to put to use.

c) Depreciagtion/Amortisation

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided over the useful lives of the assets o a Straight Line Method
(SLM) at the rates specified in schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 except in the case of moulds in
respect of which the estimated useful life is ascertained as 6 years based on the independent technical
evatuation carried out by the internal technical team which is different from the estimated useful life
prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013, Building in leasehold land will be
depreciated over the remaining usefull life of the building as ascertained by an independent valuer over
the remaining lease period or life specified in the Companies Act whichever is tower.

Depreciation on assets purchased /sold during the year is proportionately charged.

Assets acquired on finance {ease are depreciated over the period of lease or its useful life, whichever is
lower. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of lease or 3 years whichever is earlier.

Aquired intangible Assets are amortised over a period of 5 years on a straight tine basis.
Self developed intangible assets are amortized over a period of five years on straight line basis once the
same completes development phase and ready to be put to use.

The Appropriateness of depreciation/amortisation period and depreciation/amortisation methad is
reviewed by the management at cach financial year end.
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

vi)

vii)

viii)

d) Capital work in progress ;

All capital expenditure for construction of fixed assets are shown as capitat work in progress until
completion of the project or until the asset is ready to use. These costs are capitalized to the relevant
items of the fixed assets on completion or on ready to use.

e) txpenditure incurred during development phase of intangible assets are accumulated in intangible
assets under development account. The carrying value of development costs is reviewed for impairment
annually when the asset is not yet in use, and otherwise when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not he recoverable.

f) Impairment of Assets :

The company assesses, at each balance sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asset, or
group of assets comprising a cash generating unit, may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. For an asset or group of assets that does not
generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recaverable amount.

The reduction is treated as an impairment toss and is recognised in the Profit and loss statement. If at
the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists,
the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a
maximum of depreciable historical cost. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
carrying amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been determined, if no
impairment loss had been recognised,

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an identified item of Property, Plant &
fEquipment, the carrying amount is reduced by government grant.

Leases

Lease where the lessor effectively retains substantially ali the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense
in the Profit and Loss Statement on a systematic basis.

Investments
Non- current investments are stated at cost of acquisition inclusive of expenditure incidental to
acquisition. Decline in value, if any, which is not considered temporary in nature, is provided for.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost or net realisable vaiue,

Emplovee Benefits

a, Short term employee benefits:

Liability towards short term employee benefits which is expected to occur within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employees renders the related services, comprising largely of salaries
& wages, short term compensated absences and annual bonus s valued on an undiscounted basis and is
charged to the Profit and Loss Statement during the period when the employee renders the services.

.
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

X

xi)

b, Defined-contribution plans;

Contributions to the Employees' Provident Fund, Employees’ Pension Scheme, Employees’ State
Insurance and Superannuation fund are as per statute/ company policy, as may be applicable, and are
recognized as expenses during the period in which the employees perform the services.

c. Pefined-benefit plans:

The company’s Gratuity scheme is administered through the Employee’s Group Gratuity-cum-Life
Assurance Scheme of the Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) of India. The net present value of the
cbligation for gratuity benefits as determined on actuarial valuation, conducted annually using the
projected unit credit method, as adjusted for unrecognized past services cost if any and as reduced by
the fair value of plan assets, is recognised in the accounts. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in
full in the Profit and Loss Statement for the period in which they occur.

d, Other long term employee benefits:

The company has a scheme for compensated absences for employees. The liabitity other than for short
term compensated absences determined on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the
year using projected unit credit method. Actuarial gain and losses are recognised in full in the Profit and
Loss Statement for the period in which they occur.

Research & Development

When the product or process developed is technical and commercially feasible, the product is identified
as marketable and viable and the company has the intention and resources to enable the marketing of
the product, the costs of relatable research and development, to the extent it could be separately
identified, are capitalised. these intangible assets are amortised on a systematic basis, either by
reference to the sale or use of the product or process or by reference to a reasonable time period not
exceeding 5 years. Revenue expenditure incurred on research and development is charged off in the
same year in which such expenditure is incurred,

Taxation

Tax expense is accounted in accordance with the Accounting Standard for Taxes on Income {AS-22),
which includes current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is the amount of income tax determined to be payable in respect of taxable income as
computed under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred tax assets/ lability represents timing differences between accounting income and taxable
income recognised to the extent considered capable of being reversed in the subsequent years. Deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available, except that Deferred tax asset arising due to unabsorbed Depreciation and
losses are recognised if there is a virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available
to realise the same.

MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the Minimum
Alternative Tax (MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the
recornmendations contained in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT
Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the
carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the_extent. there is no longer convincing evidence to the
etfect that the Company will pay normal lncome Urmg B specified period.

ff
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

xii)

xiif)

xiv)

XV}

XVvi)

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recognized at the rates of exchange which are as per the notification
issued by Centrat Board of Excise and Customs from time to time.

All menetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the rates ruling at the
year end and all exchange gains/ losses arising there-from are adjusted to the Profit and Loss Statement.
Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the same on
reporting date from the rates at which they were initially recognised, are reported as income or expense
in the year in which they arise.

Forward exchange contracts

Forward contracts in foreign exchange are entered into by the company mainly to hedge its net foreign
currency exposure arising out of highly probable forecast transactions which are not covered by AS 11
{The effect of change in foreign exchange rate) notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006. Hence the company follows the guidance note on Accounting for Derivatives contracts issued by
ICAI which is in effect from 1/4/2016. Forward contracts are accounted for at fair value with the
changes in fair value as at the reporting date being recognised in the profit and loss statement.

Borrowine Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of a qualifying asset
are capitalized as part of cost of such asset till such time as the asset is ready for its intended use or
sale,

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarity requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Inventories

Raw materials and components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.
However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down

below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above
cost. Cost is ascertained under first in first out method.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, iess estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Customs Duty and Excise Duty

(a) Excise Duty in respect of goods sold is reduced from Sales.

(b} Customs duty applicable on goods under clearance have been computed and provided for by adding
the same to the value of relative inventories.
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
xvii) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events for which
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed regularly and are
adjusted where necessary to reflect the current best estimates of the obligation.
Contingent liabitities are disclosed in the notes when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the accounts.
xiy Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profits / (losses) for the year attributabie to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and for the year is presented and
adjusted for events, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in rescurces.

Diluted Earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period should be

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

[This space is [2ft blank intentionally]

Page 10 of 33



KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Share Capital 31.03.2020 31,03.2019
&) )
Authorised :
70,00,000 {2019 : 70,00,000) £quity Shares of ¥. 10/ each 7,00,00,000 7,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
67,99,992 (2019 : 67,99,992) Equity Shares of T, 10/- each 6,79,99,920 6,79,99,920
6,79,99,920 6,79,99,920
a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the financial year:
Equity Shares outstanding: 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
quity She : 8 No. of shares (%} No. of shares (%)

Al Lhe beginning of the year 67,99,992 6,79,99,920 67,99,992 6,79,99,920
Issued during the vear - - - -
Outstanding al the end of the year 67,599,992 6,79,99,920 67,99,992 6,79,99,920

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥. 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is
entitled te one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts if any. The distribution wili be in preportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the prior written consent of the Debenture
Trustee and the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The company has not issued any securities that are convertible into equity/ preference shares,

. Letails of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

: L Particdlars ___31,03.2020 31.03.2019
__No. of shares % of holding No, of shares % of holding
Ramesh Kunhikannan, Managing Director 67,96,670 99.95% 67,96,670 99.95%
d, For the period of five years immediately preceding 31.03.2020
a. No shares were allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash.
b. Aggregate Number and class of shares allotted as fuliy paid up by way of bonus shares.
No, of shares E9]

Equity share of ¥. 10/- each

(1) Financial Year 2017-18 16,99,992 1,69,99,920
The Company has issued 16,99,992 fully paid eguity shares of ¥.10 cach during that year pursuant to bonus issue
approved by the shareholders in the EGM held on 14.09.2017. One Bonus share of ¥.10 each was allotted for every
three equity share held in the company.

¢. No shares were hought back,

Reserves and Surplus

31.03.2020 31,03.2019
Securities Premiuim
Balance as at the beginning of the year 75,09,880 75,09,880
Less : Utilised towards issue of bonus shares - -
Closing Balance 75,09,880 75,09,880
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 8,00,00,000 3,75,00,000
Add  Additions during the year {refer note helow)

- 4,25,00,000
1,16,87,500 :
6,83,12,500

Less :Utitsed towards redemption of debentures ( IL&FS)
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“The debenture redemption reserve is created as per Section 71 of the Companies Act-2013 read with rule 18(7) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014,

General Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
Add :Transfer from Debenture Redemption Reserve 1,16,87,500
Closing Balance 6,16,87,500 5,00,00,000

Surplus in the profit and loss statement

Batance as at the heginning of the year 73,00,18,042 67,99,99,366
Net Surplus in the profit and loss statement 11,34,46,964 9,25,18,675
Appropriations !

Less :Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 4,25,06,000

84,34,65,006  73,00,18,042

Total Reserves and Surplus 98,09,74,886 86,75,27,922

4 Long-term horrowings

MNon-current portion Current portion
31.03.2020 31.03,2019 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
(X) ) (X} )
Debentures
Unsecured Debentures . 1%,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 .
Secured Debentures 7,65,00,000 12,32,50,000 4,67,50,000 4,67,50,000
Term loans
From Others
Secured 79,26,634 16,87,053 75,50,334 70,44,450
Unsecured - 68,18,501 55,26,504 1,57,35,809
Vehicle Loan
From Bank - Secured 1,32,00,591 1,37,00,842 46,49,594 40,43,007
From Others - Secured 3,258,889 - 4,38,332 .

9,79,56,114 29,54,56,396 21,49,14,764 7,35,73,266

The above amount includes

Secured borrowings 9,79,56,114 13,86,37,895 5,93,88,260 5,78,37,457
Unsecured borrowings - 1%,68,18,501 1%5,55,26,504 1,57,35,809
Amount disclosed under the head

"Cther current liabilities"[refer note 9) - - (21,49,14,764) (7,35,73,266}
Net amount . 9,79,56,114 29,54,56,396 - -

ja.] Notes on Debentures
(i} 150 Unrated, Unlisted Non Convertibie Debentures of face value ¥. 10,00,000/- with a coupon rate of 18% p.a.
payable at monthly advance rest. The maturity date shall be the date falling on the expiry of 30 months from the
deemed date of allotment which is 17.10.2017. These are guaranteed by the personal guarantee and pledge of 26%
shares of the Company held by the founders of the company. The Maturity date of the above debentures has been
extended by the holders till 13.10.2020 due to COVID-19 pandemic through letter dated 28-06%-2020.

(iiy 1,700 Unrated, secured, unlisted,Non Cenvertible Debentures of face value ¥, 1,00,000/- with a coupon rate of
16% p.a. payable at monthly advance rest repayable in 16 quarterly instalments with the first repayment starting from
30.06.2019 onwards. This is secured against hypothecatlion of specific plant & machinery and specific receivables,
Trese are guaranteed by the personal guarantee and pledge of 33% shares of the founders of the company. The
principal amount falling due within a period of 12 months from the balance sheet date on these debentures
aggregating to $.4.68 Crares (PY T.4.68 Crores) is disclosed under other current liabilities as current maturities of long
term borrewings (refer note 9}
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[b.] Notes on Long Term Borrowings- Secured
(i) Siemens Financial Services Private Limited - Two secured term leans from this Non Banking Financial Institution are
repayable in 48 monthly instalments along with the interest at 13.25% per annum [PY:13,25%], The loan is secured by
hypothecation of ptant and machinery acquired using this loan. The principal amount failing due within a period of 12
months from the balance sheel date on this loans aggregating te ¥, 23.59 takhs (PY ¥.58.85l.akhs) is disclosed under
other current liabilities as current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 9).

(i1} Sundaram Finance Ltd- Secured term loan-1 of ¥, 44.70 lakhs is repayable in 47 monthly instalments along with
interest at 13.50% per annum  [PY: 13.50%]. The loan is secured by hypothecation of plant and machinery acquired
using this loan. The principal amount falling due within a period of 12 months from the balance sheet date on this
loan aggregating to ¥. 13.27 lakhs (PY : ¥, 11.59 lakhs) is disclosed under other current liabilities as current maturities
of long term borrowings (refer note 9) Charge is pending to be registered with ROC for this loan.

{iif) Suncaram Finance Ltd- Secured term loan-2 of ¥. 1.68 Croves is repayable in 48 monthly instalments along with
interest at 13.50% [PY: NA] per annum. The loan is secured by hypothecation of plant and machinery acquired using
this loan, The principal amount falling due within a period of 12 moenths from the balance sheet date on this loan
aggregaling to T.38.63 lakhs is disclosed under other current liabilities as current maturities of long term borrowings
(refer note 9),

fc.] Notes on Long Term Borrowings- Unsecured
(i) Hero Fincorp.- Unsecured working capital term loan of 2.5 Crores repayable in 48 monthly instalments along with
interest rate of 12.75% p.a. (PY: 12.75%) which is secured by a charge on the personal property of the director Mr.
Ramesh Kunhikannan, situated at SY 60, Kizhunna desom, Kannur and LIC policy of Ramesh Kunhikannan with
surrender value of ¥.2.49 creres. The principal amount falling due within a peried of 12 months from the balance
sheet date on this loan aggregating to T, 55.26 Lakhs (PY: ¥. 1,49 crores) is disclosed under other current liabilities as
current maturities of long term borrowings {(refer note 9)

(i) Bajaj FinServ-Unsecured working capital term loan of T.35.75 lakhs repayabie in 48 monthly instalments along with
interest rate of 19.75% (PY 19.75%) p.a. The principal amount falling due within a period of 12 months from the
balance sheet date on this loan aggregating to T, Nit (PY: ¥, 8.06 lakhs) is disclosed under other current liabilities as
current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 9). The Loan was closed during this year.

[d.]Notes on Vahicle Loans
Yehicle toans frem bank is repayable in 24 to 48 monthly instalments along with the interest at rates ranging from
8.85% to 9.80% per annum. The loan is secured against the vehicles purchased using this toan. The principal amount
falling due within a period of 12 months from the balance sheet date on this loan aggregating to 3, 46,49 lakhs (PY 7.
40.43 lakhs ) is disclosed under other current Uabilities as current maturities of {ong term borrowings (refer note 9).

Vebhicle loan from others for ¥. 9 lakh is repayable in 24 monthly instalments along with the interest at the rate of
15.12% per annum. The loan is secured against the vehicle purchased using this loan. The principal amount falling due
within a period of 12 months from the balance sheet date on this loan aggregating to ¥. 4.38 lakhs is disclosed under
other current Habilities as current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 9).

[e.] There has been no Continuing default as on balancesheel date in repayment of {oans and interest.

5 Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

31,03,2020 31.03.2019
ES)] (%)
Deferred tax liability
Fixed assets: timing differences on account of depreciation ailowance. 9,51,08,671 G9,13,22,422
Gross deferred tax liability 9,51,08,671 9,13,22,422
Deferred tax asset
Expenses: timing differences on expenses allowable on payment basis. 1,10,97,755 1,16,53,520

Gross deferred tax asset e 1,10,97,755 1,16,53,520
Net deferred tax liability o ol 8,40,10,917 7,96,68,902

Page 13 of 23




KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& Long term provisions

Non-current portion

Current portion

31.03.2020 31,03.2019 31.03.2020 31.03,2019
) ) (%) )
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity [refer note 31} 2,13,54,336 1,80,26,120 21,15,113 57,57,392
Compensated Absences [refer note 31) 41,69,228 44,67,344 3,28,285 5,319,824
7 2,55,23,564 2,24,93,464 24,43,398 62,597,216
Amaount disclosed under the head
“Short Term Provisions” Irefer note 10] - (24,43,398) (62,97,216)
Met amount 2,55,23,564 2,24,93,464 - -
7 Short-term borrowings
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
4] )

Short term Unsecured loans from shareholders

Loans Repayable on demand :

1,42,00,000

7,38,00,000

- From Banks

Cash Credit - Secured 96,14,83,972 65,78,46,940

Rupee Packing Credit - Secured 10,01,20,229 32,41,03,512

Foreign Currency Bills Discounted - Secured - 5,54,21,418

Foreign Currency Packing Credit - Secured 4,26,83,554

- From Other Parties

Rupee Packing Credit - Unsecured - -

Rupee demand loan - Unsecured 2,95,95,815 3,35,00,000
771,10,54,00,017  1,18,73,55,424

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
) (%)

The above amount includes

Secured borrowings 1,06,16,04,202 1,08,00,55,424

Unsecured borrowings 4,37,95,815 10,73,00,000

Net amount 1,10,54,00,017 1,18,73,55,424

[Hotes]

a) Shart term loans from shareholders are repayable in monthly instalments during the next year and carries interest
al rates ranging from 13% o 17% per annum,

b} Secured Cash credit, Packing credit and Buyers credit from Banks are secured against the hypothecation of stock of
raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, book debls outstanding and common coliateral security of factory
land and building, canteen building and plant and machinery. Canara Bank which has approved a cash credit, packing
credit and bill discounting facility to the extent of I, 56 Crores holds 52.80% share of the above securities with a
raripassu charge held by Sarswath Bank Limited and State Bank of India. Further these loans have been guaranteed by
the parsonal guarantee of twe whole time directors of the company.

¢} Saraswat Bank Limited has approved a cash credit facility of 2. 37 crores on 01-10-2018 which is secured against
hypothecation of Stocks, Book debtors, Land and Buildings with paripassu charge in favour of Canara bank and State
Bank of India. Documentation and modification of charge for this are complete.

dy State Bank Of india has approved a cash credit facility of T, 17 crores on 05-02-2020 where the securities
hypothecated with Canara Bank and Saraswal Bank Limited shared on paripassu basis. Documentation and
modification of charge for this are complete.

e} Rupee demand loan from Bajaj Finserv Limited has been repaid or rolled over at the request of the company.
f) Canara Bank- pledge of 30% shares of the company held by one of the directors in favour of the bankers,

g} Rupee demand loan amounting to ¥. 3 crores from Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited is secured by
Urconditional and irrevocable bank guarantee amounting te-%w:3.Crores.
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micre and small enterprises [refer note below]
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
) )
4,01,65,198 66,68,376
86,56,21,678 87,88,63,922
90,57,86,876 88,55,32,298

[Note} The Company has identified Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, based on intimations received from suppliers as (o their status under the said Act.
Particulars of dues to these parties are as under:

Overdue amount outslanding at the end of the year
Principal amount {except overdue amount) outstanding at the end of the year

Interest paid after due date during the year.
Interest amount accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

Other Liabilities

Other current liabilities

Current Maturities of long-term debts [refer note 4]
interest accrued but not due on horrowings

Rent Deposit
Others

Trade Payables [Capital Goods)

Dues to employees [Refer note below)
Statutory dues payable

Advance from customers

[Notes}

Dues to employees include due to relaled parties:

10

- Ramesh Kurhikannan
- Savitha Ramesh

- Premita Ramesh
- Govind Shasiprasad Menok
- Jairam P Sampath

Short term provisions
Compensated Absences [refer note 6]

Gratuity [refer note 6]
Income Tax (Net of Advance tax paid and TDS)

[This spdce is left blank intentionaily]

3,27,09,920 38,56,742
64,51,812 28,11,634
10,03,467 4,86,280

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
&) ®)
21,49,14,764 7,35,73,266
16,83, 105 1,56,686
- 15,00,000
1,59,40,452 -
3,94,43,644 5,02,64,128
2,77,34,066 1,86,26,552
98,75,658 2,71,55,469
30,95,91,690  17,12,76,101
6,50,800 3,17,800
3,30,800 3,77,800
80,800 1,54,800
2,41,800 -
3,36,800 99,800
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
3,28,285 5,39,874
21,15,113 57,57,392
1,64,78,365 1,21,78,959
1,89,21,763  1,84,76,175
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 Non-current investments

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
) 53]
Trade investments (Valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investments in equity Instruments of Subsidiaries (Unquoted)
Kaynes Embedded System Private Limited 30,080,000 30,00,000
tess: Provision for diminution in vatge (30,00,000) (30,00,000)
Kemsys Technologics Private Limited 50,080,000 50,00,000
Kaynes International Design & manufacturing Private Limited 14,99,900 14,99,900
Kaynes Technology Europe GmbH 92,41,162 G2,41,162
Investments in equity Instruments- Others (Unquoted)
Winfoware Technologies Limiled 1,68,02,500 1,08,02,500
Mysore ESDM Cluster 25,000 25,000
2,65,68,562 2,65,68,562
Investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted)
Canara Robeco Capital Protection Oriented Fund 4,00,000 units at 2. 10 [PY: 8,49,980
! ra ”omm ap rotectio ented Fun un [ 40,008,000 84,99.800
units at 7.10 }
Canara Robeco Emerging Equities - Reguiar Growth fund - 2,273,130 units of €. 87.91 each .
. ereing Buars : 1,99,850 1,99,850
[PY: 2273,130 units of .87.91 each]
Canara Robeco Emerging Equities - Regular Growth fund - 315.66 units of ¥ 95.04 each
) HMETEING =4 sars A 30,000 30,000
[PY:315.66 units of . 95.04 cach]
Canara Robeco Balance regular growth- Regular Growth fund - 976.665 units at ¥.143,24
- ¢ regliar sfowki feg : 1,39,900 1,09,900
each [PY: 789.647 units at T.139.17 each]
Canara Robeco Balance regular growth- Regular Growth fund -135.30 units at T,147.82
. . : 20,000 20,000
each [PY: 135.30 units at ¥.147.82 each}
Canara Robeco infrastructure - Regular Growth Fund-1,711 units at ¥, 46.7124 [PY: 1,711
. ; . 79,925 79,925
units at $.46.7124 each]
Canara Robeco Large Capital Fund - Regular Growth Fund- 6,474,126 units of 2.21.6129
o rarse Lapitel B ’ 1,39,925 1,39,925
each [PY: 6,474.126 units of ¥.21.6129 each
Canara Robeco Large Capital Fund - Regular Growth Fund- 1,320.212 units of 2,22.7201
arse el ® ‘ * 30,000 30,000
each {PY: 1320,212 units of ¥.22.7201 each]
Canara Robeco Consumer Trends Fund - Regular Growth - 1,083,756 units of T.36.9086
. 40,000 40,000
each [PY: 1,083.756 unit of ¥, 36.9086 each]
Canara Robeco Equily Diversified - Regular Growth- 404,530 units of €,123.6002 each [PY:
2l eco kquity gL " * [ 50,000 50,000
404,530 units of ,123.6002 each)
47,129,600 91,99,400
Net amount 3,12,98,162 3,57,67,962
Aggregate amount of Unguoled investments 2,65,68,562 2,65,68,562
Aggragate amount of provision for diminution in value of investments 36,00,000 30,00,000
Quoted NAY of investments 51,42,844 1,05,28,060

12,1 fnvestments in equity instruments of subsidiaries

a) Investment in Kaynes Embedded System Private Limited, 30,000 equity shares of T.100 each {2019 30,000 equity shares) of

7,100/ ¢ach, constitutes 60% (2019: 60%) of the capital of that company.

b} tnvestment in Kemsys Technologies Private Limited 50,00,000 (of this 10 shares heid by the nominee) equity shares (2019;
5G,£0,000; of face vaiue of 2,1/- each purchased at par, constitutes 100% (2019: 100%) of the capital of that company.

¢} Investment in Kaynes Technology Europe GmbH- 270 equily shares (of this 27 shares held by the nominee) ¥, 92,41,162/-

{2019: T, 92,41,161/ ), constitutes 60% of capital of that company,

dy Investment in Kaynes international Design & manufacturing Privatle Limited- 1,49,990 equity shares ¥. 14,99,900/- (201%: 7 .

Hil}, constitutes 95.21% (PY:99.99%) of capital of that company.

12.2 Investments in equity instruments- Others .
aj Investment in Winfoware Technologies Limited 14,87,120 equity shares (201
cach purchasec at a premium, constitutes 18.98% of the capital of that company

4_-,87,??O~equity shares) face value of ¥
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13

14

b) Investment in Mysore ESDM Cluster (Company constituted under section 8 of the Companies Act 2013), 2,500 equity shares of
T.10/- each constitutes 14.29% [PY:14.29%] of the capital of that company.

Long-term loans and advances
’ Non-current portion Current portion
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 31.03,2020 31.03.2019
) ) 8] )
Capital Advances - Unsecured, considered good 3,50,20,585 1,82,97,773 -
Security Deposit
Lnsecured, Considered good
Rent Deposit 1,82,15,684 1,87,99,836
Litility Deposit 31,53,798 31,32,528 - -
M Deposit . - 62,04,174 64,54,791
Deposit against peiformance bank Guaraniee 19,67,515
Loans and advances to related parties
Unsecured, considered doubtful 37,91,722 37,04,722
Less © Provision for doubtful advances 137,91,722) (37,04,722)
Unsecured, considered good - - 8,54,57,987 9,66,56,326
Advances recoverable in cash, kind or for value
to be received
Unsecurea considered good 1,29,60,400 91,47,298
Other loans and advances
Balance with statutory/government authorities - 39,59,835 24,70,215 2,92,46,310 1,69,06,411
Unsecured [Refer note 17]
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provisions) 18,83,939 35,76,298 - -
l.oan and advances to employees - - 91,52,461 98,80,222
7,51,94,242 5,54,23,948 13,20,28,448 12,98,97,750
Amount disclosed under the head
"Short term Loans and Advances' {refer note 17] - - (13,20,28,448) (12,98,97,750)
Net amount TTT7,51,94,242 5,54,23,948 - -
The above amount includes
Unsecured, considered good 7,51,94,242 5,54,23,948 13,20,28,448 12,98,97,750

[Notes]

[13.1] Loans to retated parties include . 3.92 crores (PY ¥, 3.9 Crore) given to Kemsys Technologies Private Limited (Wholly-
Owned Subsidiary) carrying interest of 8% per annum {PY: 8% per annum]. An amount due from directors against employee loans
given to them ¥. 2,08,27,045/- (PY: 2. 3,09,71,197/-). Balance represents advances given to other subsidiaries and associates in
the normal course of business with them. Since there is no fixed repayment schedule stipulated for these advances to related
parties the same has been classified as a current asset,

[13.2] Balance with statutory and government authorities Includes ¥.21,10,000/- [PY: £.16,00,000/-] paid under protest to
Karnataka VAT authorities in relation to CST assessment for the year 2015-16 pending rectification as mentioned in Note 27.6.

inventories

31.03,2020 31.03.2019

(T )

Raw Materials and Components 1,00,94,66,504 94,01,59,614
Work i progress-Gooads 11,45,54,167 10,26,12,716
Work in progress - Services 6,23,30,189 3,17,00,416
Finished Goods 18,87,13,02% 6,26,57,772
Stores and spares 2,96,94,772 2,26,17,269 -
Goods In Transit 3,16,78,496 4,07,55,825

1,43,64,37,157  1,20,05,03,612

*nventery is vatued at cost on FIFO method through the Inventory module of accounting package used and consists of material
costs and overheads to the extent applicable and allocated. :
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15

16

17

18

Trade Receivable
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
(%) )

Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for
payment
Unsecured, considered good 9,74,68,635 9,85,69,727
Unsecured, considered Doubtful - 8,53,72%

9,74,68,635% 9,94,23,456
Less: Provision for doubtful receivable - 8,563,729
Net total 9,74,68,635 9,85,69,727
Others
Unsecured, considered good 83,15,07,712 1,10,69,80,183
Total 83,15,07,712 1,10,69,80,183

92,89,76,347

1,20,55,49,910

Cash and Bank Bajances
31.03.2020 31.03,2019
() (T}
Cash and Cash Equivaients
In cash credit account ' 13,773 18,92,30,534
In current accounts 6,47,829 30,21,482
In EEFC account: 1,54,952 1,33,936
Cash on hand 1,66,413 2,00,324
9,82,966 19,25,86,276
Other bank balances
Other carmarked batances " 7,72,76,380 6,26,14,505
margin Money ! 3,25,78,314 5,89,55,873
Other Deposits 45,16,438 42,21,736
11,43,71,132 12,57,52,114
11,53,54,098 31,83,78,390

[1] Represents the debit balance in Rathakar Bank Limited (RBL) (PY: €. 18.92 Crores in Kotak Mahindra Bank},

[2] Other earmarked batances include deposits encumbered with a bank ¥, 6,10,07,795/- for providing working capital facility and

is readily encashable,
[3] Held with banks for issue of bank guarantees, letters of credit and guarantees Lo customs authorities,

Shaort-term {oans and advances

31.03.2020 31.03.2019

%) ®)

Other loans and advances - Unsecured considered good
Long-term loans and advances - Current Portion [Refer note 13] 10,27,82,138 11,29,91,340
Balance with statutory/government autherities [Refer note 17.1] 2,92,46,310 1,69,06,411
Prepaid expenses 1,87,18,860 2,84,65,373
Advance paid to Suppliers 19,81,26,651 10,06,73,603
Minimum Alternate Tax- Credit Entitlement 81,41,115 -
Total 35,70,15,074 25,90,36,727

Notes:

17.1-Includes ¥.14,89,620/- due from customs authorities. An order was passed by the commissioner of customs on 19.7.2017
appropriating ¥, 5,10,380/- against the deposit of 2. 20 lakhs and directing for returning the balance after following the refund

procedures which is pending.

(ther current assets
TT3N.03.20200 31.03.2019
() (%)
Gthers
Interest accrued 1,17,86,456 90,50,587
Grant Receivable 35,88,549 -
- 90,50,587

Total ~71,53,75,005

" [This.space is left blank intentionally]

Page 20 of 33



KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Export Sales
Domestic Sales
Sale of services
Revenue from operations (Net)

20 Other Income

21

22

Interest Income (Gross)

On Fixed deposits

On Advances
Export incentives
Rent received
Profit on sale of mutual funds
Profit on sale of fixed assels
Miscellaneous Income

Cost of raw materials and components consumed

inventory at the beginning of the year
Rawr Materials and Components
Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at the end of the year
Raw Materials and Components

Less: Research and Development Expenditure (Considered

Seperately in Note No. 25)
Cost of raw materials and components consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and

traded goods

Closing Stock

Finished Goods
Work-in-progress-Goods
Work-in-progress-Service

Less:

Opening Stock

Finished Goods
Wark-in-progress-Goods
Work-in-progress-Service

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
(%} )
63,38,33,295 57,20,34,950
2,64,00,42,284 2,69,00,55,423
32,95,32,310 26,63,39,836

3,60,34,07,889

3,52,84,30,210

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
- ® %)
75,25,859 62,35,569
66,64,308 62,91,486
55,12,620 96,30,392
- 18,67,572
10,16,798 -
50,000 -
3,686 4,556
2,07,73,271 2,40,29,575
31,03,2020 31.03.2019
{X) ®)
94,01,59,615 65,17,57,377

2,64,73,79,305

2,67,99,78,551

~3,58,75,38,920

3,33,17,35,928

1,00,94,66,504

94,01,59,615

2,57,80,72,416

2,39,15,76,313

2,07,29,454

1,34,66,602

2,55,73,42,962

2,37,81,09,711

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
®) )

18,87,13,029 6,26,57,772
11,45,54,167 10,26,12,716
6,23,30,189 3,17,00,416
36,55,97,385 19,69,70,903
6,26,57,771 6,45,69,389
10,26,12,716 3,84,78,450
3,17,00,416 -
19,69,70,903 15,30,47,839

(16,86,26,482)

(4,39,23,064)
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23 Employee Benefits expense

24

25

6

Salaries and Wages
Contribution to Provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Less: Research and Development Expenditure {Considered
Seperately in Note No, 25)

Less: Intangible Assets Capitalized (Refer Note No 33)

Finance costs

interest

- 0n Term/Vehicle Loans

Total

- On Working Capital Loans

- On Debentures
- On delayed payment of Income Tax &TDS
- On delayed payment of octher taxes

- Others

Loan processing Fees

Less: Capitalization of Interest (Refer Note No 11(iif))

Research and Development Expenditure

Raw Materials, Components and Consumables
Salaries and Wages

Staff Welfare Expenses

Professional Charges

Communication expenses

Total

Travelling and Conveyance

L.ess: Grant Received (Refer Note No 35)

Less : Capitalised as intangible Assets/intangible Assets
under development

Other Expenses

Rent
Rates and Taxes

Printing and Stationery

Insurance

Discounts allowed

Donations
Power and Fuel

Total

Labour and Processing Charges

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
<) )
39,03,25,270 37,06,02,211

1,36,28,231
4,11,91,107

2,12,43,604
3,97,20,566

44,51,44,609

43,15,66,381

4,23,25,202

4,00,54,577

83,72,310 -
39,44,47,096 39,15,11,804
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

) )

1,04,10,020 96,22,250
14,48,81,158 11,30,22,718
5,15,60,860 4,61,55,981

55,80,650 49,66,568

95,01,004 61,13,127

19,68,542 -

53,14,182 72,85,573
22,92,16,416 18,71,66,217

38,60,586 -
22,53,55,830 18,71,66,217
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

®) &)
2,07,29,454 1,34,66,602
4,23,25,202 3,95,37,418
- 5,17,159

3,00,000 35,79,529

3,75,624 4,00,030

14,30,036 9,66,563

6,51,60,316 5,84,67,301

42,44,709

6,09,15,607  584,67,301
4,46,70,016 3,06,34,165
1,62,45,590 2,78,33,135
31.03.,2020 31.03.2019
&) )
2,84,53,351 2,61,94,550
2,47,01,095 1,38,51,535

39,49,297 46,58,489

39,38,434 38,01,166

46,60,064 3,51,922

12,35,645 1,25,93,460

2,76,45,278 3,00,34,085
7,44,26,633 6,83,22,626
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Stores, Spares and Consumables Consumed
Repairs and Maintenance:
- Plant and Machinery
- Building
- Others
Security Charges
Legal and Professional Charges
Auditors Remuneration [Refer Note below]
Commission on Sales
LD/Claim Settied
Bank Charges
Communication expenses
Travelling and Conveyance
Advertisement and Business Promotion
Outward Freight and Forwarding
CSR expenditure
Bad Debts & advances Written Off, (net)
LLoss on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation, (net}
Loss on saie of Fixed Assets
Miscellaneous Expenses

Less: Research and Development Expenditure (Considered
Seperately in Note No. 25)

- Travelting and Conveyance

- Communications

- Legal & Professional charges

Total

Auditors' Remuneration

Statutory Audit
Tax Audit
Taxation Services
Other certification

7,89,00,905 7,25,70,687
1,10,79,018 1,55,36,858
22,04,367 79,77,052
1,07,40,337 1,44,67,141
67,57,210 53,33,195
1,76,05,242 2,08,18,824
12,30,000 11,65,000
1,30,88,128 1,38,83,851
5,82,848 61,09,519
98,59,379 1,09,94,949
72,23,297 56,38,934
2,79,36,311 2,96,64,335
1,25,03,875 1,71,62,958
2,01,21,793 1,55,99,310
31,05,898 29,77,495
49,40,259 2,25,37,094
70,73,314 1,19,46,252
4,66,050
4,72,909 9,49,202
40,44,34,886  43,56,06,539
14,30,036 9,66,563
3,75,624 4,00,030
3,00,000 35,79,529
21,05,660 49,46,122
40,23,29,226  43,06,60,417
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
®) ®)
9,00,000 8,00,000
2,00,000 2,00,000
1,00,000 80,000
30,000 85,000
12,30,000 11,65,000

[This space is left blank intentionally]
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27 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

aj

[alk=2

o

27

27

27

28

48

28

28

Particulars ' 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
@ ®

Contingent Liabilities:
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt

Disputed income Tax Pemand [refer note 27.1] - 23,87,630
Disputed income Tax Demand - CPC Demand [refer note 27.2] 17,36,670 -
Disputed Income Tax Demand - CPC Demand [refer note 27.3] 75,064,783 -
Risputed income Tax Demand - CPC Demand [refer note 27.4] 4,94,11,430 19,60,393
Disputed Income Tax Demand - CPC demand frefer note 27.5] 11,13,987 -
Disputed Sales tax Demands pending rectification [refer note 27.6] 5,07,38,662

Disputed Sales tax Demands pending {refer note 27.7} 10,41,19,725

Bank Guarantees for contractual performance 1,58,67,852 3,23,64,089
Bond Executed for Customs/Central £xcise. 27,82,14,000 23,50,00,000

Covered by Bank guarantee to the extent of .1,04,11,000/- [PY: ¥.41,25,000/-]

Corporate Gaurantee to Subsidiary Company 2,00,00,000 -

Commitments:
Estimated amount of zontracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 3,00,98,653 5,10,32,369
nol provided for, net of advances

Joint Commissioner of Income Tax, Mysore has disallowed the claim made under 80iC for the assessment year 2010-11
stating that the expenses claimed for §0IC is not in accordance with the relevant provisions and issued a demand
notice of ¥.23,87,630/-.The company has paid the full demand against this assessment and filed an appeal against
this which the Hon. ITAT has remanded to Joint Commissioner of income tax thus cancelling the demand.

The CPC demand includes ¥.17,37,670/- against the disallowance made by ITO against under 35(2AB) for AY, 2016-17
and thereby reducing the MAT credit availed by the company which is disputed in appeal.

The CPC Demand includes T 75,64,783/- against dissallowance of claim under Section 35(2AB) for the AY 2017-2018,
The company has paid <. 15,13,957/- under protest and an appeal filed,

The CPC demand at ¥. 4,94,11,430/- relates to mismatch of income/deductions/exemptions reported in the income
Tax Returns and Form 16 for AY 2018-2019 against which rectification / application is pending.

The CPC Demand for AY 2019-20 relates to disallowance of certain expenses and difference in credit for Tax Deducted
at Source. The company is in the process of filing an appeal against this.

No provision is made in respect of the above income tax demands disputed in appeal / rectification as it has not
reached tinality and management is not expecting any material liability,

Sale tax demand includes ¥ 3,28,44,797 /- along with interest of ¥ 1,77,97,974/- and Penalty of T 95,891/- against
non submission of C Forms for the assessment year 2015-2016. The Company has filed Rectification request and the
matter is peading before Deputy Commissioner of Commercial Taxes VAT (Audit-2), Mysore Division. A sum of ¥
21,000,000/ - has been paid under protest against their demand.,

Sale tax demand includes T 6,05,34,724 /- along with interest of ¥ 4,35,85,001/- against non submission of C Forms
for the assessment year 2014-2015. Company has filed appeal before Joint Commissioner Appeals of Commercial
Taxes VAT Mysore Division and the decision is pending.

These demands have arisen due to non submisson of certain forms most of which have been since submitted and
management is confident of submitting in full and getting the demand reversed through rectification and hence no
provision is considered necessary.

The investments in unquoted shares of various companies are strategic in nature and made with {ong term vision and
hence no provision is considered necessary for the same presently having regard to their long term projection for
husiness except in the case of subsidiary M/s Kaynes Embedded Systems Private Limited. Hence investment of
7.30,00,000/-[PY: ¥.30,00,0601 in that coempany is fully provided for. The loans and advances aggregating to
T.37,04,722/-[PY: 2.37,04,722) due from this party is also fully provided for.

Company's investment in  M/s Kemsys Technologies Private Limited of . 50,00,000/- and toans advanced
392,120,224/ -[PY: ¥.3,92,12,224] where net worth has eroded, is considered recoverable as the company has turned
around and earned net profit for the last 3 years. The proposed activities and orders booked by that company also
show good progress. -
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29

30

31

a) In the opinion of the management, current assets, loans and advances have a value not {ess than what is stated in
the accounts if realized in  the ordinary course of business.

b) Some of the trade Receivables, loans & advances and trade payables are subject to confirmation. Management is
of the opinion that discrepancies, if any, thal may arise on such reconciliation/confirmation will not have any
matertal impact on the financial statements on a net basis.

The Company has an internal control system which is adequate considering the size and operations of the company.
The company has an in-house team of accountants. The operations and activities of the company are supervised by
the Directors of the Company on a day-to-day basis. They are alse invoived in the approval and processing of
payments.

Considering the present size and operations of the company, it has implemented simple information systems
consisting of a software customised for the company which are extensively used with very high level of acceptance in
the industry, The identification of risks and controls is not a separate evaluation but an integral part of the processes
and procedures followed by the company,

it also has a separate internal audit carried out by external independent firm of Chartered Accountants,The
operations of the above controis are also constantly monitored by the Directors and these were found to be
effectively operating at the year end.

Disclosure requirements as specified under AS 15 - * Employee Benefits” are envisaged below:

fa.] Defined Contribution Plans (Amountsin ¥, )
_Particulars o 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Employers’ contribution to Provident Fund 28,03,048 24,16,123
Employers’ contribution to Employee State Insurance 39,81,229 45,97,727
Employers’ contribution to Employee’s Pension Scheme 1995 63,62,231 54,84,008
[k.] Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity -Funded obligation
The liability towards gratuity is provided for on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using projected unit
credit method. The liability for gratuity is agministered through Life Insurance Corporaticn of India (LIC).

Compensated Absences- Unfunded obligation
Company provided for unavailed accumulated leave of employees on the basis of actuarial valuation using
projected unit credit method.

i, Actuarial Assumptions Compensated Absences Gratuity
o 2020 2019 2020 2019
Discounl Rate {per annum} B 7.00% 7.75% 7.00% 7.75%
Expected return on plan assets NA NA 7.00% 7.75%
Salary escalation rate”® 5.00% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00%
Mortality rate IALM 12-14 IALM 06-08 PALM 12-14 IALM 06-08
Ultimate Lltimate Ultimate Ultimate

“The assumption of future salary escalation in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority,
promotions and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

ii. Reconciliation of Obligation Compeﬁé&ted Absences Gratuity

2020 2019 2020 2019
Present value of obligation at the 50,07,168 42,10,072 3,13,79,956 2,44,272 113
beginning of the year
Current Service Cost 13,28,491 16,62,531 49,94,681 49,29,762
Past Service cost - - - -
interest Cost 3,50,502 3,26,281 21,96,597 18,92,714
Actuariat {gain)/ loss (21,88,648) {11,91,716)} (69,95,921) 15,49,082
Benefits Paid - 5,94,692 - 14,13,715

Prasent value of obligation at the end of
the year

50,07,7168 3,09,80,621 3,13,79,956

44,97,513

Pape 25 of 33



KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iii, Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets Gratuity
31.03.2020 3i1.03.2019

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 75,96,444 83,88,472
Return en plan assets 5,31,751 6,50,107
Actuarial gain/ (loss) (22,331) (28,420)
Contributions - -
Benefits paid (5,94,692} (14,13,715)
Assels aistributed on settlement - .
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 75,111,172 75,96,444
”i"\Af"."I‘)ch-;cri|)tion of Plan Assets Gratuity
31.03.2020 31.03,2019
Insurer Managed Funds (LiC of India) 75,411,172 75,96,444
v, Net (Asset)/ iigbility recognized in Compensated Absences Gratuity
the Balance Sheet as at year end 31.03.2020  31.03.2019  31.03.2020  31.03.2019
Present value of obligation at the end of 44,97 ,513 50,07,168 3,09,80,621 3,13,79,956
the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the - - 75,11,172 75,96,444
year
Net present value of unfunded 44,997,513 50,07,168 2,34,69,449 2,37,83,512
obligation recoegnized as {asset)/ liability
in the Balance Sheet .
vi} {Income)/ Expense recognized in the Profit and Loss Statement

Compensated Absences Gratuity
e 31,03,2020 31.03.2019 31.03.2020 31,03,2019
Current Service Cost 13,28,491 16,62,531 49,94,681 49,29,762
Interest Cost 3,50,502 3,26,281 21,96,597 18,92,714
Actuarial {gain)/ loss recognized for the {21,88,648) (11,91,716) {69,73,590) 15,77,502
pericd
Expected return on plan assets (5,31,75%) {6,50,107)
{Incorne}/ Expenses recognized in the - - .
Profit and Loss Statemant {5,09,655) 7,97,096 (3,14,063) 77,49,871
vii) History of defined benefit obligation, plan assets and experience adjustments over 5 years- Gratuity
o 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Present value of obligation 3,09,80,621 3,13,79,956 2,44,22,113 2,06,39,75% 2,10,02,044
at the year end
Fair value of plan assels at 75,11,17% 75,96,444 83,88,472 82,36,807 83,83,291
end of the year
Funded status- {deticit)/ (2,34,69,449) {2,37,83,512) (1,60,33,641} (1,24,02,952) {1,26,18,753)
surpius
Expertence adjustments on {67,39,078) 9,71,684 {16,88.739) (2,61,370) (43,42,194)
plan labilities
Experience adjustments on (22,331} {28,420) (3,213) 27,955 23,91

plan assets

“The above disclosures are based on infermation certified by the inde|3éﬂr‘\wc‘iuéw|‘1u{actuat'y and relied upon by

auditors.
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32

33

Segment Reporting

The Company operates predomirantly in one business segment of Electronics Manufacturing Services and accordingly
primary reporting disclosures for business segment, as envisaged in Accounting Standard (AS) 17 on Segment
Reporting, are not applicable.

During the year, the Company has eight manufacturing facilities in india and two service facilities operate
predominantly in India and export market and accordingly the secondary reporting disclosures is made for
geographical segments, as envisaged in " AS-17 ",

Sales:

Geographic Segment 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Outside India 63,38,33,295 57,20,34,950
In India 2,96,95,74,594  2,95,63,95,260
Total 3,60,34,07,889 3,52,84,30,210

All material assets are located in india as export proceeds are also realisable in India. Hence no disclosure of segment
assets/cost Lo acquire tangible and intangible asset is given.

Related Party Disclosures
Disclosure in respect of material transactions with associated parties as required by Accounting Standard (AS) 18
“Related Party Transactions”

[A.] Related Parties and their Relationship with the Company

Ref Description of relationship MNames of Related parties

{1.} Subsidiary Companies: Kaynes Embedded Systems Private Limited
Kemsys Technologies Private Limited
Kaynes Technology Europe Gmbh
Kaynes International Dasign & Manufacturing Private Limited

[2.] Entity Controlled by Directors: Kaynes Interconnection Systems India Private Limited

[3.] Entity where relative of Directors have A ID Systems {India) Private Ltd
substantial interest

{4.] Key Management Personnel:

Mr. Ramesh Kunhikannan Managing Director

Ms. Savitha Ramesh Whole Time Director

Mr. Jairam P Sampath Whole Time Director
[5.] Relatives of KMP's: Ms. Premita Ramesh

Mr. Govind Shasiprasad Menokee

[B.] Transactions with Related Parties

Transactions / Balances Subsidiaries / Entities Key Relatives of
Associates Controlled by Management KMP
Directors Personnel

[1.] Loans and Advances given to:
Kaynes Embedded Systems Private Limited 87,000

Kemsys Technologies - Private Limited - . - -
(1,07,41,940} ) (-} (-)
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[ii.] Loans and Advances repaid by:
Kemsys Technotogies Private Limited -
{1,07,41,940)

(-

Kaynes Embedded Systems Private Limited - - - -
(19,50,000) {-) (-) (-}
[iii.} Services Received from:
Kemsys Technologies Private Limited . - - -
(12,813) ) ) ()
Kaynes Intercennection Systems India Privale - 1,40.076 - -
Limited Q! (32,384) ] )
[iv.] Commission paid:
Kaynes Technotogy Europe GMBH 1,31,26,371 - . -
(1,33,83,740) ) ) )
[v.] Received towards Marketing, Distribution,
Administration, Management & Qther Support Services
Kaynes International Design & Manufacturing 2,48,83,940
Private Limited
{-) () () (-}
[vi.] interest on loan advanced
Kemsys Technologies Private Limited 31,36,978 - - -
(30,31,550) {-) (-) (-}
[vii.] Purchases:
(a) Purchase of Material
Kemsys Technologies Private Limited 21,67,370 - . -
(35,80,202) () ) )
Kaynes Interconnection Systems India Private 1,02,07,157 - -
Limited ) (81,73,637) () (-
{b) Purchase of Property
Savitha Ramesh 1,36,32,220
)
[viii.] Sale of material:
Kemsys Technologies Private Limited 69,41,148 - - -
(52,33,038) {-) ) )
Kaynes Interconnection Systems india Private 41.38 383
Limited T
(- {74,43,624) {-) )
Kaynes International Design & Manufacturing 5,82,24,551 - - .
Private Limilted (-} {-) () {-)
[ix.] Remuneration and Commission:
tr. Ramesh Kunhikannan
-Remuneralion - - 68,16,000 -
) () (1,43,16,000) )
Ms. Savitha Ramesh
-Remuneration - - £8,16,000 -
{- () (1,43,16,000) ()
tr. Jairam P Sampath - - 48,00,000 -
) ) (71,50,000) ()
Ms, Premita Ramesh - - 19,50,000
(- (- ) (24,00,000)
Mr, Govind Shasiprasad Menokee . - 30,00,000
{) () (-}
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I'x.] Transaction in current account (net)

Mr. Ramesh Kunhikannan . - (33,66,611) -
(-) () (1,95,550) ()
s, Savitha Ramesh - - (62,41,735) -
(- (-} {3,40,257) )
[C.] Balances with Related Parties
Entities Key Relatives of
Transactions / Balances Subsidiaries Controlled by Management KM[;
Directors Personnel
[i.] Loans and Advances
Kemsys Technologies Private Limited 4,78,26,155 - - -
{Including Interest Receivable) (4,50,02,875} () (-) {-)
Kaynes Embedded Systems Private Limited 37,91,722 . - -
(37,04,722) ) ) )
Kaynes Interconnection Systems India Private 1,64,25,765 -
Limited (-} (2,03,33,704) {-) (-)
Kaynes Technology Europe GMBH 65,91,600 - - -
(61,39,200) ) ) {-)
[7i.} Loans and Advances Received
Kaynes International Design & Manufacturing 98,75,658 - . -
Private Limited (2,71,55,469) {r) (-) ()
[iii.] investments:
Kaynes Technology Europe GMBH 92,41,162 - - -
(92,41,162) () (-} )
Kemsys Technologies Private Limited 50,00,000 " . -
(50,00,000) (-) (-) {-)
Kaynes Embedded Systems Private Limited 30,00,000 - - -
(301003000) {') {‘) {")
Kaynes International Design & manufacturing 14,99,900
Private Limited
(14,99,900) (- -} (-}
fiv.] Payable
Kaynes Technology Europe GMBH 11,44,068 - - -
(11,97,916) 9] ) ()
Kaynes Intercennection Systems india Private - - - -
Limited (- (47,37,316) (-) (-)
[v.] Sale of materials Receivable:
Kemsys Technologics Private Limited 1,47,84,230 - - -
(47,71,727) {-) {-) )
Kaynes International Design & manufacturing - - - -
Private Limited o ) (-} () -
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[vi.] Advance towards supply of material:

Kemsys Technologies Private Limited 97,39,628 - - -
{-) (- {-) {-)
[vii.] Amount Receivable from/ Due to directors:
Mr. Ramesh Kannan {Dr. Batance) . . 1,06,86,482
(") {") (1s42148!642) (')
Ms. Savitha Ramesh (Dr. Balance) - - 1,25,41,917 -
{) (-) {1,67,22,556) {-)
M. Jairam P Sampath (Dr. Balance) - - 561
) () (5,71,474) {-)
[viii.} Salaries payable
#r. Ramesh Kunhikannan - - 6,50,800 -
(") {") (3117:800) (')
Ms. Savitha Ramesh . - 3,30,800 -
(- (-) (3,77,800) )
tr. Jairam P Sampath (-} (-} 3,36,800 ()
) ) (99,800) )
Ms. Premita Ramesh - - - 30,800
{-) {-) {-) {1,54,800)
Mr. Govind Shasiprasad Menokee - - - 2,41,800
{-) () {-) )
[ix.} Balance in current account:
Mr. Ramesh Kannan (Dr. Balance) - . - -
(- {-) {1,95,550) ()
Ms, Savitha Ramesh (Dr, Balance) . - {74,01,353) -
() {-) (3,40,257) {-)

[Note.]
1, Numbers in Parentheses represent previous year number,
2, Suspension of recovery of loan for one year is subject to approval of the Company in general meeting,

34 Operating Lease:

Company has entered into operating leases in respect of office/factory buildings some of which are effectively non
cancellable.

Particulars . 31.03.2020  31.03.2019
Not {ater than one year 95,009,520 Nil
One Lo five years - 95,09,520 Nil
Total e 1,90,19,040 Nil

35

(a) Research & Development
The company has a full fledged Research and Development Division which is approved by Department of Science &
industrial Research (DSIR} of the Ministry of Science & Technology, Government of India. The details of Expenditure
incurred, recoveries made and amounts transfered to Intangible assets T. 88,14,713/- and transfered to Intangible
assets under development 2, 3,58,55,303/- on completion of successfull research are given in Note No 25 above. The
company has also carried out seperate Research & DRevelopment work for an ERP Software outside the approved
Research & Development Division and a sum of , 83,72,310/- incurred on is also included in intangible assets under
development {Refer Note No; 11(iii))
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(b} Global Innovation & Technology Alliance

36

During the year the company entered into an agresment with Global Innovation & Technology Alliance (GITA), a not
for profit company set up to technically and administratively manage industrial research and development programme
of India with other countries to support Indian industry Lo gain economic compitetiveness, for carrying out
develepment of high power amplifier for use in low/mid field MRI Application under ladia Canada coliaborative
industrial research and development programme. In terms of this the company has sanctioned a sum of ¥
1,50,00,000/- as conditional grant subject to certain terms and conditions including payment of royalty on sale of
products that are developed under this agreement for a period of five years at rates to be agreed upon but not tess
than 2% of the sale value commencing from a date to be decided by GITA which shall be after six months from the
date of successfuil completion of the development of product.

The company's claim against this has been approved for ¥, 46,44,549/- including ¥. 3,99,840/- towards cost of an
equipment was sanctioned before 31-03-2020 and a sum of . 10,56,000/ - was received and the balance was received
after the year ended which is disclosed in Note 18. The amount received has been netted of against the cost of the
asset and balance sum of Z. 42,44,709/- has been disclosed as a recovery against R & D costs. The project is in
progress and management is hopefull of completing the project fulty and claiming the balance amount also in the
next year.

No provision for royalty is made as it is Lo be paid out of income to the earned out of sale of products on compietion
of the project.

Foreign exchange exposures not hedged by derivative instruments
Particulars 31,03,2020 31.03.2019

FC Amount (%) FC Amount &)
Payab!e_;:w"
EURO 1,59,448 1,32,34,184 4,52,785 3,54,63,477
GBP 1,02,941 85,42,044 9,63,973 8,80,30,030
JPY 15,74,212 10,98,643 - .
uwe ~ . 49,906,798 37,43,09,850 73,77,073 51,35,91,841
Receivables :
EURO 6,13,408 4,67,61,015 10,73,936 8,23,49,389
GBP 3,55,947 3,09,34,218 4,17,581 3,72,27,328
Ush ) 14,6%5,904 10,11,15,189 13,90,474 9,52,05,783
Loan and Advances :
EURC ' 4,84,992 4,02,54,336 1,00,000 76,74,000
GBP 90,598 75,17,822 . -
JPY 1,29,11,617 90,111,018
Ush o 11,84,323 8,88,24,225

37 Earnings Per Share

38

Earnings per Share ("EPS") computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20 “Earnings per Share”

Particulars . 31.03,2020 31.03.2019
Basic and Diluted:

Net Profit After Tax as per Profit and Less Account (£.) - (A} 11,34,46,964 9,25,18,675
Weighted Average Number of Shares outstanding for Basic & Diluted EPS (Nos.) -

(B) 67,99,992 67,99,992
Basic earnings per share (X.) (A} / (B) 16.68 13.61
Diluted earnings per share (3.) (A)Y / (B) 16,68 13.61
Nomina! value per share (X.) 10.00 10.00

Production, stock and sales

[A.] Raw materials consumption: [Bare Printed Circuit Boards' (PCB's) , Integrated Circuits (IC's),etc.]

Particulars 31.03,2020 31.03.2019

Quantity {No's) Value Quantity (No's) Value
integrated Circuits 1,84,05,502  69,00,76,730 1,71,89,484  62,15,26,354
Printed Circuit Boards 1,00,70,656 33,33,99,073 99,40,907 29,69,75,866

Other Compeonents o
(indi (individually less than 10% of _t,:g)t\g nstimp
Total e

49,10,59,740  1,53,38,67,159 51,99,06,235 1,46,92,65,316

7.55,73,42,962 54,70,36,626 2,38,77,67,536
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Value Percentage (%)
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 31,03.2020 31.03.2019

Particutars

Imported 1,52,34,86,533  1,69,31,61,926 60% 66%
Indigenous 1,03,38,56,429 69,46,05,610 40% 34%
Total 2,55,73,42,962 2,38,77,67,536 100% 100%

[B.] Stock of finished goods

o Finished Goods
Particulars

31,03,2020 31.03.2019
‘Manufactured goods 18,87,13,029 6,26,57,772
Total 18,87,13,029 6,26,57,772

* The company has only one major product i.e. Populated PCBs. Hence no category wise break-up is given,

39 CIF Value of Imports

Particulars value
o 31,03.2020 31.03.2019
Raw Materials 1,54,87,89,485  1,68,88,81,777
Components fi Spare parts 46,91,156 51,38,858
Capital Goods 18,75,319 77,593,070
40 Earnings in Foreign Currency -
Particulars Value
31.03.2020  31.03.2019
Earnings in Foreign Currency - Export of goods (FOB) 63,38,33,295 57,20,34,950
41 Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Particulars Value
— 31.03,2020 31.03,2019
Comrnission 1,31,26,371 1,33,83,740
Travel 3,03,431 25,43,121
Advertisement & Business Promotion 5,46,084 34,86,043
Legal & Professional charges ) - 10,83,104

42 The outbreak of COVID-19 had resuited in the Government of india undertaking drastic measures for containment of
the disease. In view of these measures, the operations at the manufacturing units of the company was fully shutdewn
from March, 23 2020. The company was able to resurne limited operations at some of its manufacturing units during
April, 2020. The company was able to achieve almost normal levet of operations from 11th May, 2020 consequent to
further retaxations from the Government Authorities and has since achieved capacity utilisation at near normal levets.

Consequent to the sudden lockdown imposed, the company was nol able to despatch goods manufaciured and kept
ready and appropriated against confirmed crders to the extent of ¥. 1,18,49,304 /- although the same were invoiced
and recognised as sales. These have heen since and accepted by the customers.

The incremental costs incurred by the company to adhere to the standard operating procedures notified by the
Government / Authorities for operating its facilities was not significant.
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KAYNES TECHNOLOGY INDHA PRIVATE LIMITED
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The global spread of COVID-19 has {ed to an uncertain business environment including its ability to pursue recovery of
its advances and using the accumulated stocks, The management has considered the possible effects that may result
from the COVID-19 pandemic on the carrying value of various assets inctuding investments (net of impairment loss) in
subsidiaries and loans and advances given to subsidiaries and other parties after taking into account various internat
and externat information including for settlement of liabilities upto the date of approval of these financial statements
and have concluded that they are fully recoverable based on the expected future performance of the Company and
its subsidiaries on a net basis. The Company has also assessed various scenarios and assumptions and based on the
current estimates, the management of the Company expects that the carrying amount of these assets, as reflected in
the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, net of provisions made are fully recoverable and that no further provision is
required.

Considering Lhe present liguidity position of the company and its ability Lo raise funds, if required, the management
of tne company does not foresee any adverse impact cn its ability to continue as going concern and in meeting its
liabilities as and when they fall due.

The impact assessment of COVID-1% is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature as weil
as it’s duration and the management will continue to menitor any events/ changes to future econoimic conditions.
Accordingly, the final impact may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
statements.

43 Corporate Social Responsibility;
[i.} Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the company. The
areas for CSR activities are promoting education, rendering help at the time of natural calamities, and helping under
privileged people etc. which are in compliance with Schedule Vil of Companies Act,2013.

{i.] The details of amounts spent during the year and remaining unspent on CSR project are as below:

Amount %]

Particulars 31,03,2020 31,03,2019

Amount spent for eligible CSR projects :

Gross Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 30,39,202 27,11,002
Budget aliocated by the Board during the year 30,44,894 30,00,000

Amount Spent during the year 31,05,898 29,77,495
Cumulative amount Unspent -

44 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s
classification/disclosure.

_..{Signatures to all si

nt notes forming part of Financial Statements)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of As per our report of the even date attached

Kaynes Technology India Private Limited
. S%Q’/wiﬁg

CIN: UZ91Z28KA2008PTC045825
(
Jairam P Sampath For VARMA & VARMA
Managiivg Direclor whole Time Director Chartered Accountants

IDIN: 02063167] [DIN: 08064368) Firm Registration No: 0045325 .
{

S c T

N Srividhya

Company Secretary Partner
M. No.016043

Place: Mysore Place: Mysore Place: Bangalore
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